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NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND EXTRAORDINARY GEN' F.RAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual and Extraordinary General Mceung {the 'Mc:ung") ofSTl'NA RESOURCES -

LTD. {the *Company™) will be held on February 27, 2008 at Suite 1925 - 700 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, B.C. at
the bour of 1 1:00 a.m. (Vancouver time} for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Report of the Directors.

2 Tao receive and consider the audited financial statements of the Company for the period ending Sepiember 30,
2007 together with the auditor’s report thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration to be paid to the
suditors.

4. To cleet direetors 10 bold office until the next Annual General Meeting and to fix the number of directors 3t 3.

5. To approve the proposed Stock Option Plan of the Company more particularly described in the Information
Citeular and to suthorize the Directors to make modifications thereto in accordance with the Plan and the
policies of the TSX Venwre Exchange.

6. To authorize:

(%) any amendments 1o previously issued stack option agreements, including decreases in the exercise price
of previously issued stock options; A

(b}  the grant 1o insiders, within a [2 month period, a number of options exceeding 10% of the number of
issued shares;

(c) she issuance of 8 number of shares 10 any cne insider and such insider's associates upon the exercise of
stock options within s one year period that exceeds 5% of the outstanding listed shares (provided that
the Company is n Tier § issuer under the rules of the TSX Venture Exchange).

7. To consider and, if thought fit, approve an ordinary resolution to ratify, approve and confirm all lawful acts,
contracts, proceedings, appoinimenis and payments of money of and by the direciors of the Company since the
date of the Company's last annual genera] meeting.

8. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

An Information Circular, report of the auditor and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
Septerber 30, 2007, with related it di ion and analysis, pany this Notice. The Information Circular
contains details of maners to be considered at the Meeting.

Shareholders who are unable 10 attend the Mecting in perscn and who wish to ensure that their shares will be voted at the
Meeting are requested to complete, date and sign the enclosed form of proxy, or another suitable form of proxy, and
deliver it by fax, by hand or by mail in accordance with the instructions sct owt in the form of proxy atd in the
Information Circutar. Sharehalders who plan to attend the Meeting must follow the instructions set out in the form of
proxy and in the Enformation Circular o eénsure that their shares will be voted at the Mecting.

DATED a1 Vancouver, British Columbia, this 22nd day of January, 2008,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF STINA RESQURCES LTD.

Per: “Edword Gresko "
Edward Gresko, Director




STIN SOURCES L.TD,

INFORMATION CIRCULAR
This information circular contains information as at JANUARY 22, 2008,
RSONS MAKIN 15 IT. N QF P 3

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of Proxies by the Management of
the Company for use at the Annual and Extraordinary General Mecting (the "Mceting™) of the sharcholders of
STINA RESOURCES LTD. (the "Company™) 1o be held st the time and place and for the purposes set ferth in
the accompanying Notice of Meeting, and at any adjoumnment thereof. [t is expected that the solicitation will
be primarily by mail. Proxies may also be solicited personally by officers of the Company. The cost of
solicitation will be borne by the Company.

GENERAL PROXY INFORMATION

The solicitation of proxies wilt be primarily by mail, but proxics may be solicited personally or by telephone
by directors, officers and regular employees of the Company. n accordance with National Instrument 54-101
of the Canadian Securities Administrators, arrangements have been made with brokerage houses and other
intermediaries, clearing agencies, custodians, nominess and fiduciaries to forward solicitation materials to the
beneficial owners of the voting commeon shares in the capital of the Company (the "Shares") held on a record
by such persons and the Company may reimburse such persans for reasonsble fees and disbursements
incurred by them in so doing. All costs of this solicitation will be borne by the Company.

Appointment of Proxyholders

The individuals named in the sccompanying form of proxy are directors, officers or other representatives of
the Company. A shareholder entitied to vote at the Meeting has the right to appeint a person o7 company, who
need vot be a shareholder, to attend and act for the shareholder on the sharcholder's behalf at the Meeting
other than either the persons of company designated in the accompanying form of proxy, and may do so cither
by inserting the navae of that other person in the blank space provided in the accompanying form of proxy or
by completing and delivering another suitable form of proxy. Submitting a proxy by mail, by hand or by fax
are the only methods by which a shareholder may appoint a persen as proxy other than a director or officer of
the Company named on the form of proxy.

Vpting by Proxyholder

On a poll the nominees named in the accompanying form of proxy will vote or withhold from voting the
Shares represented thereby in accordance with the instructions of the shareholder on any ballot that may be
calted for, If the shareholder has specified o choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the Shares
will be voted accordingly. The proxy will confer discretionary suthority on the nominees samed therein with
respect 10!

(2) each matter or group of matters identified therein for which a choice is not specified, other than the
appointment of an suditor and the election of directors,

(b) any emendment 10 or variation of any matter identified therein, and
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{c) any other matter that properfy comes befare the Meeting.

In respect of 2 matter for which a choice is not specified in the proxy, the nominees named in the
accompanying form of proxy will vote the Sharcs represented by the proxy at their own discretion for the
approval of such matter,

Registered Sharcholders

Shareholders may wish to vote by proxy whether or not they are able to attend the Meeting in person.

" Registered sharehalders electing to submit a proxy must compleze, date and sign the form of proxy. It must
then be returned to the Company's transfer agent, PACIFIC CORPORATE TRUST COMPANY, 2nd Floor,
510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B9, or 1o the Company prior 1o the commencement of the
Meeting. Sharcholders may wish 1o vote by proxy whether or not they are able 10 attend the Meeting in
person.

Advice to Beneficial Holders of Shares

The information set forth in this section is of sigaificant importance to many shareholders of the Company, as
a substantial number of sharehalders do not hold Shares in their own name. Sharcholders who do not hold
their Shares in their own name (referred 10 in this Information Circular as "Beneficial Sharebolders™) should
note that only proxies deposited by sharcholders whose names appear on the records of the Company as the
registered holders of Shares can be recognized and acted upon at the Mesting. if Shares are listzd in 2n
account statement provided to a Shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those Shares will not be
registered in the Shareholder's name on the records of the Company. Such Shares will more likely be
registered under the names of the Shateholder’s broker or an agent of that broker. In the United States, the vast
majority of such Shares are registered under the name of Cede & Co. as nomince for The Depository Trust
Company (which acts as depositary for many U.S. brokerage firms and custodian banks), and in Canada,
under the name of CDS & Co, (the registration name for The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited,
which acts s nominee for many Canadizn brokerage firms). Bene ficial Shareholders should ensure that they
foltow the instructions of their broker to ensure their instructions respecting the voting of their Shares are
communicated to the appropriate person.

Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries/brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial
Sharcholders in advance of sharcholderss' meetings, Every intermediary/broker has its own mailing procedures
and provides its own return instructions to clients, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial
Shareholders in order to ensure that their Shares are voted at the Meeting. The form of proxy supplied to 2
Beneficial Shareholder by its broker {or the agent of the broker) is similar to the form of proxy provided to
registered shareholders by the Company. However, its purpose is limited to instructing the registered
ghareholder (the broker or egent of the broker) how to vote on behalf of the Beneficial Sharcholder. The
majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Investor
Communication Services ("Broadridge™) in the United States and in Canada. Broadridge mails a voting
instruction form in lieu of the form of proxy provided by the Company. The voting instruction form will name
the same persons as the proxy to represent the Beneficial Sharcholder at the Meeting. A Beneficial
Shareholder has the right to appoint a person (who need not be a Beneficial Sharzhelder of the Company)
ather than the persons designated in the voting instruction form, to represent the Beneficial Sharcholder at the
Meeting. To exercise this right, the Beneficial Sharcholder should insert the name of the desired
representative in the blank space provided in the voting instruction form. The completed vating instruction
form must then be returncd to Broadridge by mail or facsimile or given te Broadridge by phone or over the
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internet, in accordance with Broadridge's instructions, Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instroctions
received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of Shates to be represented a1 the
Meeting. A Beneficial Shareholder receiving a voting instruction form from Broadridge cannot use it 1o vote
Shares directly at the Mezting - the voting instruction form must be returned to Breadridge, as the case may
be, well in advance of the Meeting in order to have the Shares voted. Although a Beneficia! Sharcholder may
not be recogaized directly at the Meeting for the purpoeses of voting Shares registered in the name of his
broker {or agent of the broker), 2 Beneficial Shareholder may attend at the Mesting as proxyholder for the
registered Shareholder and vote the Shares in that capacity. Beneficial Sharcholders who wish to attend at the
Meeting and indirectly vote their Shares as prexyholder for the registered shareholder should enter theirown
names in the blank space on the instrument of proxy provided 1o them and return the same to their broker {or
the broker's agert) in accordance with the instructions previded by such broker (or agent), weliin advance of
the Meeting.

Alternatively, Beneficial Sharcholders may request in writing that their broker send 1o them a legal proxy
which would cnable them to attend at the Meeting and vote their Shares.

Revocation of Proxies

1n addition to revocation in any cther manner permitted by law, 8 registered sharehelder who has given 8
proxy may revoke it by either executing 2 proxy bearing a later date or by executing a valid notice of
revocation, either of the furcgoing to be executed by the registered shareholder or the registered sharcholder's
anthorized attorney in writing, or, if the shareholder is a corporation, wnder its corparate seal by an officer or
attorney duly authorized, and by delivering the proxy bearing a later date to PACIFIC CORPORATE TRUST
COMPANY, 2nd Floor, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B9 or at the address of the registered
office of the Company at Suite 1925 - 700 West Georgia Street, PO Box 10037, Pacific Centre, Vancouver,
B.C. V7Y 1Al, at any time up to and including the last business day that precedes the day of the Meeting or,
if the Meeting is adjourned, the Jas business day that precedes any reconvening thereof, or to the chairman of
the Meeting on the day of the Mecting or any reconvening thereof, or in any other manncr provided by law. In
addition, a proxy may be revoked by the registered shareholder personally attending the Mecting and voting
the registered sharcholder's Shares. A revocation of a proxy will not affect a matter on which a vate is taken
before the revoeation.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Nore of the directors or executive officers of the Company, nor any person who has held such & position since
the beginning of the last completed financial year end of the Company, nor any proposed naminee for election
as a director of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons, has any substantial or
material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ewnership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to
be acted on at the Mecting other than the election of directors, the appointment of the auditor and as set out
herein.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has fixed January 22, 2008 as the record date (the "Record Date") for
determination of persons entitled to receive notice of the Meeting. Only shareholders of record et the close of
business on the Record Date who either attend the Meeting personally or complete, sign and deliver a form of
proxy in the manner and subject to the provisions described above will be entitled to vote or to have their
Shares voted at the Meeting.
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As of January 22, 2008, the Company had outstanding 11,828,467 fully paid and non-assessable Shares
without par vaiue, each carrying the right io one vote.

To the knowledge of the dircctors and executive officers of the Company, only the following person
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or exercised control or direction ever, Shares carrying more than
19% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Shares of the Company:

. Number of Percentage of
Name Shares Qutstanding Shares
Sidney Mann A 1,189,150 10.05%

The zbove information was supplied to the Company by the shareholders and from the insider reports
available at www.SEDLca.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The comparative audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2007 and the
report of the suditor thereof will be placed before the Meeting. The audited financial statements, the report of
the auditor, together with the management's discussion and analysis, were mailed 10 shareholders with the
Notice of Meeting and the Information Circular.

VOTES NECESSARY TO PASS RESOLUTIONS

A simple majority of affirmative votes cast at the Meeting is rcquired to approve the resolutions deseribed
herein except special reselutions will be required to change the authorized share structure of the Company to
an unlimited nutber of shares and to adopt new Articles for the Company. A special resolution is a resolution
passcd by a majority of not less than of the votes cast by the shareholders who, being entitled to do so, voted
in persen or by proxy at the Meeting. If there are more nominees for election as directors or appointment of
the Company's auditor than there are vacancies to fill, those nominees receiving the greatest aumber of votes
will be elected or appointed, as the case may be, until all such vacancies have been filled. If the number of
gominees for election or appointment is equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, all such nominees will
be declared elected or appointed by acclamation.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The size of the Board of Directors of the Company is currently determined at 3. The board proposes that the
number of directors remain at 3. Shareholders will therefore be asked 10 approve an ordinary resolution that
the number of directors elected be fixed at 3.

The term of office of each of the current directors will end at the conclusion of the Meeting. Unless the
director's office is earfier vacated in accordance with the provisions of the British Columbia Business
Corporations Act ("BCA"), each director elected wili hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company, of if no director is then elected, until a successor is elected.
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The follawing table sets out the names of management's nominees for election as directors, 21§ major offices
and positions with the Company and any of its significant affiliates each now holds, each nominee's principal
occupation, business or employment for the five preceding years for new director nominees, the period of
time during which cach has been a director of the Company and the number of Shares of the Company
beneficially owned by each, directly or indirectly, or over which cach exercised controi or direction, as at
January 22, 2008.

Name, Position and Principal Occupation or Period a Director | Shares

Residence Employment : of the Company Beneficially
Owned

Edward Gresko Salesman since 1980 Since April 8, 1,000

Etobicoke, ON Currently self-employed 1993

President, and Director

Sidney A. Mann Businessman since 1970 Since January 22, | 1,189,150.

Middlesex, England Currently self-employed 1996

Director

George Weinstein Businessman since 1970 Since Tune 20, NIL

Richmond, BC Currently sclf-employed 2002

Director

All of the persons named above are residents of Canada except for Sidney A. Mann, 2 res;idens of England.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURE

Corporale governance relates to the activities of the board of directors (the "Board"), the members of which
are elected by and are accountable 1o the shareholders, and takes into account the role of the individual
members of management who are appointed by the Board and who are charged with the day- to-day
management of the Company. The Board is committed to sound corporate governance practices, which are
both in the interest of its sharcholders and contribute to effective and efficient decision making.

National Policy 58-201 Carporate Governance Guidelines establishes corporate governance guidelines which
zpply 10 all public comparies. The Company has reviewed its own corporate governance practices in light of
these guidelines. In certain cases, the Company's practices comply with the guidelines, however, the Board
considers that some of the guidelines are not suitable for the Company at its current stage of development and
therefore these guidelines have not been adopted. The Company will centinue ta review and implement
corporate governance guidelines as the business of the Company progresses and becomes more active in
operations. National Instrument 58-1 01 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices mandates disclosure
of corporate govemnance practices in Form 58-101F2, which disclosure is set out below.
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1. Board of Directors

The mandate of the Board is te supervise the managesment of the Company and to act in the best interests of
the Company. The Board acts in accordance with:

(a) the Business Corporations Act {British Columbia)

(b} the Company's articles of incorporation and by-laws

{c) the Company's code of business conduci

(d) the charters of the Board and the Board committees; and
(e} other applicablz laws and Company pelicics

The Board approves all significant decisions that affect the Company before they are implemented. The Board
supervises their implementation and reviews the results.

- The Board is actively involved in the Company's strategic planning process. The Board discusses and reviews
all materials relating 1o the strategic plan with management. The Board is responsible for reviewing and
approving the strategic plan. At least one Board meeting each year is devoted to discussing and cansidering
the strategic plan, which takes into account the risks and opportunities of the business. Management must
seek the Board's approval for any transaction that would have a significant impact on the strategic plan.

The Board periodically reviews the Company's business and implementation of appropriate systems to
manage any essociated risks, communications with investors and the financia) community and the integrity of
the Company's internal control and management information systems. The Board also meonitors the
Company’s compliance with its timely disclosure obligations and reviews material disclosure documents prior
to distribution. The Board periodically discusses the systems of internal control with the Company's external
suditor.

The Board is responsible for choosing the President and appointing senior management and for moritoring
their performance and developing deseriptions of the positions for the Board, including the limits on
management's responsibilities and the corporate objectives to be met by the management.

The Board approves all the Company's major communications, including annual and quarterly reports,
financing documents and press releases. The Company communicates with its stakeholders through a pumber
of channels including its web site. The Board approved the Company's communication pelicy that covers the
accurate and timely commurication of all important information. 1t is reviewed annually, This policy
includes procedures for communicating with analysts by conference calls.

The Board, through its Audit Committee, examines the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
pracesses and management information systems. The Board consults with the intemal auditor and
management of the Company to ensure the integrity of these systems. The internal auditor submits a report to
the Audit Committee each year on the quality of the Company's internal control processes and management
information systems.

The Board is responsible for determining whether or not each director is an independent director. The
President, Secretary and any other officer are not considered indcpendent. None of the other directors work in
the day-to-day operations of the Company, are party to any material contracts with the Company, of feceive
any fees from the Company except as disclosed in this circular,
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Directorships

The directors of the Company currently hold no directorships on other reponing issuers:

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Board of Directors of the Campany briefs all new directors with the policies of the Board of Directors,
and other relevant corporate and business information.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Bozrd bias found that the fiduciery duties placed on individual directors by the Company's governing
corporate legislation and the common law and the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislationonan |
individual director’s pasticipation in decisions of the Board in which the director has an interest have been
sufficient to ensure that the Board operates ind dently of B! t and in the best interests of the
Company. .

P

Urder the corparate legislation, 8 director is required to act honestly and in good faith with a view 1o the best
interests of the Company and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent persen would
exercise in comparable circumstances, and disclose to the board the sature and extent of any interest of the
director in any material contract or material transattion, whether made or proposed, if the director is a party to
the contract or transaction, is a director or officer {or an individual acting in & similar capacity) of a party to
the contract or ransaction of has a material interest in a party to the contract or transaction, The director must
then abstain from voting on the contract or transaction unless the contract or transaction (i) relates primarily to
thejr remuneration as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Company or an affiliate of the Company,
(i1} is for indemnity or insurance for the benefit of the director in connection with the Company, or (iii} is
with an affilizte of the corporation. If the director abstains from voting after disclosure of their interest, the
directors approve the contract or transaction and the contract or transection was reasonable and fair to the
Company at the time it was entered into, the contract or transaction is not invalid and the director is not
accouniable to the Company for ary profit realized from the contract or trapsaction. Otherwise, the director
must have acted honestly and in good faith, the contract or ransaction must bave been reasonable and fair to
the Company and the contract or transaction be approved by the shareholders by a special resolution after
receiving full disclosure of its terms in order for the director to avoid such liability or the contract or
transaction being invalid.

Nomination of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for identifying individuals qualified to become new Board members and
recommending to the Board new director nominees for the next annual meeting of shareholders,

New nominees must have a track record in general business management, special expertise in an area of
strategic interest to the Company, the sbility to devote the time required, shown support for the Company's
mission and strategic objectives, and a willingness to serve.
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6, Compensation

The Board of Directors conducts reviews with regard to directors’ compensation once a year, To make its
recommendation on dircciors' compensation, the Board of Dircctors takes into account the types of
compensation and the amounts paid to directors of comparable publicly traded Canadian companies and
aligns the interests of Directors with the return to shareholders.

The Board of Directors decides the compensation of the Company's officers, based on industry standards and
the Company’s finarcial situation.

7. Other Board Committees

The Board of Directors has no other committees than the Audit committce.

8, Assessments

The Board of Directors monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, communication between the
board and management and the sirategic direction and processes of the board and comumittees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ..

The audit committee’s mandate apd charter can be described as follows:

1. Each member of the Audit Committee shall be n member of the Board of Directors, in good standing,
and the majority of the members of the audit committee shall be independent in order to serve on this
commitiee. :

2 At Icast one of the members of the Audit Committee shall be financially literate.

3 Review the Committee's charter annually, reassess the adequacy of this charter, and recommend any

proposed changes to the Board of Directors. Consider changes that are necessary as a result of new
laws or regulations.

4, The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times per year, and each time the Company proposes to
issue & press release with its quanierly or annual eamings information. These mestings may be
combined with regularly scheduled meetings, or more frequently as circumstances may require. The
Audit Commitiee may ask members of the Managemens ot others to attend the meetings and provide
pertinent information as pecessary.

s, Conduct execttive sessions with the outside auditors, outside counsel, and anyone else as desired by
the committee,

6. The Audit Committes shall be suthorized o hire outside counse! or other consuliants as necessary
(this may lake place any tme during the year).

7 Approve any non-audit services provided by the independent suditors, including tax services. Review
and evaluate the performance of the independent auditors and review with the fusll Board of Directors
any proposed discharge of the independent auditors.
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20.

Review with the Management the policics and procedures with respect to officers’ expense accounts
and perquisites, inctuding their use of corporate assets, and consider the results of any review of these
arcas by the independent auditor,

Consider, with the Management, the rationale for employing accounting firms rather thaa the
principal independent auditors.

Inquire of the Management and the independent auditors about significant risks or exposures facing
the Company; assess the steps the Management has 1aken or proposes 1o take 1o minimize such risks
to the Company; and periodically review compliance with such steps.

Review with the independent auditor, the audit scope and plan of the independent auditors. Address
the coordinaticn of the 2udit efforts to assure the completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant |
efforts, and the effective use of audit resources,

Inquire regarding the "quality of eamings” of the Company from & subjective s well as an objective
standpoint.

Review with the independent accountants: (a) the adequacy of the Company's internal controls
including computerized informetion systems coatrols and securiry; and (b) any related significant
findings and recommendations of the independent auditors together with the Management’s responses
thereto.

Review with the Management and the independent, suditor - the effect of any regulatory and
accounting initiatives, as well as off-balance-sheet strucures; if any.

Review with the Management, the independent auditors, the imserim annual financial report before it
is filed with the regulatory authotities.

Review with the independent auditor that performs an sudit: (a) alk critical accounting policies and
practices used by the Company; and (b) all alternative treatments of financial information within
gencrally aceepted accounting principles that have been di d with the Management of the
Campany, the ramifications of each alternative and the treatment preferred by the Company.

Review all material written communications between the independent auditors and the Management.

Review with the Management and the independent auditors: (a} the Company’s annual financial
statements and related footmotes; (b) the independent auditors' sudit of the financial statements and
their report thereom; (¢) the independent auditor's judgments about the quality, not just the
acceptability, of the Company’s accounting principles as applied in its financial reporting; (d) any
significant changes required in the independent auditors' audit plan; and (¢) any serious difficulties or
disputes with the Management encountered during the audit. '
Periodically review the Company's code of conduct to ensure that it is adequate and up-to-date.

Review the proccdurcs for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal sccounting controls, or auditing matters that may be
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submitted by any party intemal or extemal to the organization. Review any complaints that might
have been received, current status, and resclution if ene has been reached.

21, Review procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the organization of
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters, Review any subimissions that have
been received, the current status, and resalution if one has been reached.

. The Audit Committee wili perform such other functions as assigned by law, the Company's articles,
or the Beard of Directors.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the 2udit commuttee are Edward Gresko, George Weinstein and Sidney A. Mann, a majority
of which are independent and at Icast one member of whick is financially literate.

A member of the sudit committee is independent if the member has no direct or indirect material relationskip
with the Company. A material relationship means a relationship which could, in the view of the Company's
Board of Directors, reasonably interfere with the exercise of & member's independent judgement.

.- w A member of the audit commitice is considered financially fiterate if he or she has the ability to read and
understand a set of financial statements that present-a breadth and level of complexiry of accounting issues
that are generally comparable o the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to
be raised by the Company.

External Auditor Service Fees

The audit committee has reviewed the nature and amount of the non-audited services provided by Dale,
Matheson, Carr-Hilton, Labonte, Chartered Accountants, of Vancouver, British Columbia to the Company 1o
ensure auditor-independence. Fees incurred with Dale, Matheson, Camr-Hilton, Labante, Chattered
Accountants, of Vancouves, British Columbia for audit and non-audit services in the last two fiscal years for
audit fees are outlined in the following table.

Nature of Services

Fees Paid to Auditor in Year
erded Scptember 30, 2007

Fees Paid to Auditor in the
prior Fiscal Year

Audit Fees(1) £19,500 $18.000
Andit-Related Fees(2) Nil Nil
Tax Fees(3) 51,500 $1,000
All Other Fees(4) Nit Nil
Total 521,000 515,000

(1)) “Audit Fees" include fees necesssry to perform the annual audit and quarterly reviews of the
Company's consclidated financia] ts. Audit Fees include fees for review of 1ax provisions
and for accounting consubtations on matters reflected in the financial statements. Audit Fees also
include audit or other anes: services required by legistation or regulation, such as comfon letters,
consents, reviews of securities filings and statutory audits.
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(2) *audit-Related Fees” include fees for services that are traditionally performed by the auditor. These
audit-related services include employee benefit audits, due diligence assistance, aceounting
cansultations on proposed transactions, internal contra! reviews and audit or attest services not
required by legislation or regulation.

) "Tax Fees” include fees for all tax services other than those included in *Audit Fees" and "Audit-
Related Fees™. This category includes fees for tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice. Tax
planning and tax advice includes assistance with tax eudits and appeals, tax advice related 10 mergess
and acquisitions, and requests for rulings or technical advice from tax authorities.

4) "All Other Fees™ include all other non-audit services.

Exemption

The Company is eelying upon the exemption in section 6.1 of Mi 52-110 in respect of the composition of its
audit committes and in respect of its reporting obligations under MI 52-110.

. .
APPOINTMENT OF AUMTOR

Dale, Matheson, Cary-Hilton, Labonte, Chartered Accountants, of Vanceuver, British Columbia, w'ill be

nominated at the Meeting for reappointment as auditor of the Company ata remuneration to be fixed by the
directors, .

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Executive Compensation

"Named Executive Officer” means each Chief Executive Officer, each Chief Financial Officer and each of the
three most highly compensated executive officers, other than each Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, wha were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently completed fiscal year
and whose total salary and bonus exceeds $150,000 and any additional individuals for whom disclosure
would kave been provided except that the individual was not serving a5 an officer of the Company at the end
of the most recently completed financial year end.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Annual Comp tion Long Term Compensation
AwardsPavouts
Securities
. Other Under Shares or
Annual | Optiens | Units All
Name . Compen | Granted/ | subject to | LTIP | Other
and Year Salary Bonu | -satlon SARS resaie Payout | Compen-
Principal H restriction | s sation
Position R B - & ® # $
(s) ® '
(4]
Edward 2007 Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil
. Greskon - o Ces
2006 30,000 il Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
) 2005 | 25500 | Nil Nil 462475 | il NI Nil

The sbove-zamed executive officer(s) was/were not employed by the Company or any subsidiary of the
Compaay. R

OPTION/SAR GRANTS DURING THE .
MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED FINANCIAL YEAR

Market Valie
% of Total of Securities
Securities Options/SAR .. | Underlying
Under S Optiens/SAR
Options/SAR | Granted to Exercise Som
S Employees in | or Base Price | the Date of Expiratlon
Name Granted Financial ($/Security) Grant Date
(# commeon Year {$/Security)
shares)
Edward Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Gresko
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AGGREGATE OPTION/SAR EXERCISES DURING
THE MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED FINANCIAL
YEAR AND FINANCIAL YEAR-END OFTION/SAR VALUES

Value of
Unexercised in
Unexercised the
Options/SARS at |  Money Options at
FY- FY-End
Securities Agoregate End ]
Acquired Vilue (#
Name on Realized Exercisable/
Exercise [43) Exercisable/ Unexercisable
# Unexercisable
Edward NIL KIL 462,475 $272,560.25
Gresko

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

)

Number of securities
rentaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected in
column (2)

Plan Category

(a)

(b)

0]

Equity
compensation
plans approved
by
securityholders

Nil

N/A

1,182,847

Equity
compensation
plans not
approved by
securityholders

Nii

Nil

Total

Nit

Nil

1,182,847

There are no employment contracts between ether the Company or its subsidiaries and the above-named
executive officers ather than disclosed herein or in the financial statements attached hereto.

Neither the Company or any of its subsidiarics has any plan or arrangement with respect to compensation to
its executive officers which would result from the resignation, retirement or any other termination of
Page 13




employment of the executive officers' employment with the Company and its subsidiaries or from a change of
control of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company or a change in the cxecutive officers’
respansibilities following & change in control, where in respect of an Executive Officer the value of such
compensation exceeds $150,000.

The Company has no standard armangement pursuant to which Directors arc compensated by the Company for
their services in their capacity as Directors other than the unissued treasury shares that may be issued upan the
exercise of the Directors' Stock Options. There has been no other arrangement pursuant to which Directors
were compensated by the Company in their capacity as Directors except as disclosed herein and in the
financia) statements atiached hereto.

None of the Dircctors or Senior Officers of the Company, nor any proposed nominee for election as a directar
of the Company, niof any associate or affiliate of such persons, are or have been indebted to the Company at
&ny time since the beginning of the Company's Jast completed {inancial year.

The Company has no pension plan.
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

.Na directors, proposed ominees for election as directors, executive officers or their respective associates or
affiliates, or other management of the Company were indebted to the Company-as of the end most recently
‘completed financial year or as at the date hereof.

INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

- Aninformed person is one wha generalty speaking is a director or executive officer or a 10% sharcholder of
the Company. To the knowledge of management of the Company, no informed person or nomines for election
a5 2 direcior of the Company er any associate or affiliate of any informed person or proposed director had any
interest in any transaction which has materially affected or would materially affect the Company or any ofits
subsidiarics during the year ended September 3{, 2007, or has any interest in any material ransaction in the
current year other than as sct out herein.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except a3 set out herein, there are no management functions of the Company which are to any substantial
degree performed by & person or company other than the directors or senior officers of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TC BE ACTED UPON

L. Stock Optien Plan and Incentive Stock Options
The Manag it has recon ded that the Company recew by adoption the Stock Option Plan containing

among other things, provisions consistent with the current policies of the TSX Venture Exchange. At the
Meeting, shareholders will be asked 10 approve the Stock Option Plan. The Stock Option Plan is alsa subject
to Exchange approval.

Under the Stock Option Plan, the Board of Directors may grast up 10 10% of the issued number of shares
outstanding as at the date of the stock option grant. On this basis, the Stock Option Plan shall be operated as a
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"Rolling Plan”. Provided that disinterested sharcholder approval has been obtained, it shall be permissible
under the Rolling Plan to grant to insiders, within a 12 month period, a mumber of options exceeding 10% of
the number of issued shares (the *Additional Options™),

Inthe Rolling Plan provided that disinterested shareholder approval has been obtained, it shall be permissible
fot the Company to issue a number of shares to any one insider and such insider's associates upon the cxercise
of stock opiions within a oze year period that exceeds 5% of the outstanding listed shares (provided that the
Corpany is a Tier | issuer under the vules of the TSX Venture Exchange).

Ugder the Rotling Plan:

z the maximum term of any eption will be five years from the date of grant or such lesser period as
determined by the Board of Directots; and

b. any amendment to the Stock Option Plan will also be subject to the approval of the Exchange.
The Exchange's policies require that where the Company decreases the exercise price of options pmviouély
granted to the Company's Insiders, the Company's disinterested shareholders must approve such smendments.
The [nsiders 10 whom common shares may be issued under the Stock Option Plan and their associates must
abstain from voting on the Stock Option Plan. . . e - ce -
A copy of the Stock Option Plan will be available for inspection at the Mecting. The directors believe that the
Stock Option Plan is in the Company's best interests and recommend that the sharcholders approve the Stock
Option Pian. .o . .
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION -
Additional information relating to the Company is included in the Company's 2udited comparative financial
- statements for the year ended September 30, 2007 and the prior fiscal year. and the accompanying auditer's
report and related manzgement discussion and analysis. Copies of the Company's most current interim
financial statements and related management discussion and analysis, and additional copies of this proxy
circular, may be obtained from Sedar at www.Sedar.com and upan request from the Company's Secretary at
the address of the Company.
OTHER MATTERS

The Directors are not aware of any other matters which they anticipate will come before the Meeting as of the
date of mailing of this Information Circular.

DATED at this 22nd day of January, 2008,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
*Edward Greske"

Edward Gresko

Director
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STINA RESOURCES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2008
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of Stina Resources Ltd,,

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Stina Resources Ltd. as at September 30, 2007 and 2006 and the
consclidated statements of operations, deficit and cash flows for each of the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an epinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted owr audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An auditinciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates mage by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial pesition of the

Company as at September 30, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations and its cash fiows far the years then anded, in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles,

DML

Vancouver, B.C. DALE MATHESON CARR-HILTON LABONTE LLp
January 2, 2008 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Yancouver Sutte 1500 - 1140 Westl Pandier Strest, Vancouver, B.C., Canada VEE 461, Tel: 604 G8F 4747 » Fan, 504 689 2778 - Main Recaption
Squth SutTey Suite 301 - IS56 Martin Drive, ‘White Rock, 5.C., Canada VA SE7, Tel: 604 531 154 + Fax; &04 538 2613

Port Coquntiam Suite 700 - 2755 Loughesd Highway, Port Coquitlam, B.C., Canada VD 5Y9, Tal; EO4 941 8266 « Fax: 604 0410971



STINA RESOURCES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2006
$ $
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 245,522 50,764
Short-lerm investments - 150,000
Accounts receivable 14,819 18,783
Prepaid expenses {Note 7) 3,878 -
Inveniories (Note 3) 15.685 14580
278,704 234,127
EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 459 574
MINERAL PROPERTY INTEREST (Nom'ﬁ) 1,247,033 954,578
1,527,196 1,189,279
LIARILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabitities 137,326 53,429
Due o related parties (Note 11) 8,382 23,144

145,708 76573
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

SHARE CAPITAL (Note 6) 4,534,955 4,080,804
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS {Note 8} 214,547 215,188
DEFICIT 68,014 13,183,386}

1,381,488 1,112,706

1,527,196 1,189,270

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
signed: *Edward Gregko® Director

signed: “Sidney Mann® Director

- Sea Accompanying Notes -




STINA RESOURCES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF DEFICIT

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

20067 2008
H H)
BALANCE, beginning of year {3,183,386)  (2,667,298)
NET LOSS (184,628) . (218,088)
BALANCE, end of year {3,368,014)  (3,183,386)

- See Accompanying Notes -



STINA RESOURCES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2008
H $

SALES 64,008 76,811
COST OF GOODS SOLD {Schedule 1) 16.653 20,338
GROSS PROFIT 47355 56473
EXPENSES

Operating expenses {Schedule 2) 79,147 94,840

Administration expenses (Schedule 3) 155,780 179,737

{234 937) {374 577)

OTHER ITEM

Interest incoma 2,954 2016
NET LOSS (184,628) (216,088)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (0.02) 0.02)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING 11,688,771 10,586,474

'« See Accompanying Notes -




STINA RESOURCES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2007 2006
$ 5
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (184,628) (216,088)
Add non-cash item: )
Amertization 310 i44

(184,513). {215,944)

Net changes in olher non-¢ash operating accounts . ¢

Accounts receivable 4,164 . (3567
Inventaries (1,105) 481
Prepaid expenses {3.878) -
Actounts payable and accrued liabilities (6,103} 10,094
{191,435) (208,536}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Exploration of mineral interests {202,455) {248,558)
Short-term invesiments redeemed 150,000 150,000

Net cash flows used in investing activilies {52.455) {08 558)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of share capital 453,410 312,000
Dua to {from) related parties (14,762} 13,140
Net cash flows from financing activilies 438,648 325,140
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 194,758 17,848
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 50,764 33118
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 245,522 50,764

Supplementary cash flow information
Interest paid N —_——
Income taxes paid T _—

Man-cash transactions:

During the current year, the Company accrued $30,000 for an option payment on the Bisoni McKay property, This has
been excluded from investing and operaling cash flows above.

In 2008, a tatal of 625,000 shares were issued from treasury as part of tha acquisition cost of a resource property inlerest
{Mote 5). The shares were issued by the Company at a value of $0.72 per share, This fransaction has not been included in
the statement of cash flows above.

- See Accompanylng Notes -




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES OF COST OF GOODS SOLD

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

Schedula 1

2007 2008
$ 5

OPENING INVENTORY 14,580 15,081
ADD:

Purchases 1,862 B39

Packaging 14,861 18,349

Dhuty, freight and brokerage 935 569

17,758 . 19,857

LESS: ENDING INVENTORY {15,685} {14,580}

COST OF GOODS S0LD 16,653 20,338

Schedule 2

STINA RESOURCES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES
NORTHERN SEA'S DIVISION
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006
2007 2006
H $

Accounting 3is 308

Advertising ang promotion 1,451 3,160

Bad debis 1,035 9,675

Office 11,316 17,607

Product and market development 350 3,534

Rent 15,062 13,918

Shipping and postage 5,770 3.441

Telephona 10,438 8,263

Wages, commissions and contract services 33,410 34,834

79,147 64,840

- Sea Accompanying Notes -




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
CONSOUIDATED SCHEDULES OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2008

Schadule 3

2007 2006
$ H

Accounting, audit and legal 33,834 . 32,507
Amortization 115 144
Bank charges 1,082 1,231
Consulting fees 51,014 84,388
Exchange loss 23N 8,806
Office and sundry 14,892 8,335
Regulatory fees and shareholder communlcations 19,540 22,831
Rent 10,985 T 11,965
Transfer agent 5,338 6,889
Travel and promotion 22,039 2,541
Cost recovered {5,521) -

155,780 172,737

- See Accompanying Notes -



STINA RESOURCES LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Company's primary activity is mineral exploration and development. The Company is als¢ engaged in the health
food and supplement products industry. The Company's shares are traded on the TSX Venture Exchange (the
“Exchange’).

The Company is in the process of exploring and evaluating its mineral praperty option interest in Nevada, USA. The
Company presently has no proven or probable reserves, and on the basis of information to date, has not yet
determined whether its optioned properly contains economically recoverable resources. Tha amounts recorded as
mineral property option interest and deferred exploralion represent costs incurred to date and do nat necessarily
represent present or future values. The recoverabllity of these amounts is dependent upon the existence of
aconomically racoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to arrange appropriate financing te complete the
acquisition and development of its mineral properly option interest, and upon future profitable production or proceeds
from dispositian.

The Company has susiained operating losses since inception and has a cumulative operating deficit totalling
$3,368,014 ai September 30, 2007. These financial statements have been prepared under the going concem
assumption, which contamplales that the Company will be able to realize the carrying value of its assels and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of gperations. Should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern, the
carrying values of assets may requira significant adjusiment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Consclidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of the Company and its wholty-
owned subsidiary, Northem Seas Products Ltd. {*Nerthern Seas”). Inter-company balances and transfers have
been eliminated upon consolidation.

b} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include money market based investments and guaranteed investment carlificates where
maturity i$ less than ninety days and that may be iquidated at the Company’s options without significant
penalty.

c} Minerat property interests

Where specific exploration programs are planned and budgeted by management, mineral exploration costs
are capitalized and carried at cost until the properties to which they relate are advanced to the development
stage, placed into commercial production, sold, abandoned or determined by management 1o be impaired in
value.




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTD

c}

d

e)

IMineral property interests (coni'd)

Management evaluates the carrying value of each mineral property interest fer impairment on a reporting
period basis, or as events and changes in circumstances wairant, and makes a determination based on
exploration activity and results, estimated future cash flows, and availability of funding as to whether carrying
value has been impaired.

When future cash flows are not reasonably determinable, mineral property interests are evaluated for
impairment based on management's intentions and determination of the extent 1o which future exploration
programs are warranted and likely to be funded. .

Costs incurred for acquisition, including option payments under acquisition agreements, are capitatized until
such lime as the related mineral property interest is placed into production, sold, abandoned, or where
management has determined that an impairment in value has occurred. For mineral property interests under
aption, the Company records onfy the costs incurred or committed in respect of work prograrms or amounts
due in the reporing period for payment requirements necessary 10 maintain the aptions in good standing.

Proceeds of disposilions of partial mineral inlerest on properties are credited as a reduction of carmying costs.
No profitis realized entil all the related costs have been offset by disposition proceeds. If a propertyis placed
Into commaercial production, accumulated costs to production will be amortized based on units of production.

Income taxes

The Company follows Canadian Institute of Chanered Accountants (CHCA) Handbook Section 3465 in
accounting for corporate income taxes, The guidance focuses on the amount of income taxes payable or
receivable that will arise if an asset is realized or a liabilily is setled for its earrying amount. The resulting
future income tax asset or liability is recorded based on substantially enacted incomae tax rates or rates in
effect when the timing difference is expected to reverse. In the case of unused lax losses, flow-through
resource axpenditures and pools, income tax reductions and certain ftems that have a tax basis but cannot ba
identified with an asset or liability on the balance sheet, the recognition of future income tax assets is
determined by reference to the Tikely realization of such benefits at the balance sheet date.

Inventories

Inventaries of raw materials and product for resate are recorded on a first in first out basis at tha lower of cost
and net realizable value.

Foreign exchange

The Company uses the temporal method of foreign cuirency transiation. Batance sheet items denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dolfars al exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
for monetary items and al exchange rates in effect al the transaction date for non-monetary items. Income
statement items are translated at actuai rates or average rates pravalling during the year,

Realized gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are charged to income in the peried in which
they oceur.




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONT'D

g)

h)

K)

Administrative expenditures
Administrative expenditures not directly related to mineral property interests are expensed in the year incurred.
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabllities and disclosure on contingent assets and #tabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amaunts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd. Significant areas requiring the use
of management estimates relale to the determination of impalrment of assets, useful lives for depreciation and
amortization, inventory costing, market values of related party services, fair values of financial instruments and
the determination of the fair value of shares, warrants and stock options.

Financial resulls as determined by actual events could differ from those estimates.
Risk management

Credit and foreign currency risks are managed by policies developed by management. The Company is not
currently exposed to significant risks of holding foreign currencies or credit concentration in trade receivables.

The Company is engaged in the mineral exploration field and manages related industry risk issues directly,
The Company is at risk for environmental exposure consistent with the mineral exploration and extraction
indusiry and for fluctuations in commodity pricing. Managernentis of the opinion that the Company addresses
environmental risk and compliance In accordance with industry standards and specific project environmenital
requirements.

Amortization and tangible capital property
-Tangible capital property is recorded at cost. Amortization is provided at the following annual rates:

Office equipment 20% Declining balance
Labaratory equipment 20% Declining balance

Long-lived assets

The carrying values of long-tived assels with fixed or determinable lives are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumsiances indicate that the recoverable value may be less than the carrying amount.

Recoverable value determinations are based on management's estimates of discounted or undiscounted
future net cash flows expected to be recovered from specific assets or groups of assets through use or future
disposition. Impairment charges are recorded in the period in which determination of impairment is made by
management.

Assets with indefinite or Indelerminable lives are not amortized and are reviewed for impairment on a reporting
basis using fair value determinations by management's estimate of recoverable value, Assets held and
available for sale or not in use are segregated and reported al lower of cost and recoverable amount,




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2008

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONT'D

m)

n}

o}

Revenus recognition

Revenue from sales of health foods and supplements is recorded upan praduct shipment and when coliection
is reasonably assured.

Basic and diluted loss per shara ’
The Campany follows CICA Handbook section 3500, in calculating eamings (lass) per share.

The standard requires the use of the treasury stock method for camputing dilted earnings {loss} per share,
which assumes that any proceeds obtained upon exercise of options or warrants, would be used 1o purchase

_ common shares at average market price during the period. Loss per share is calculaled using the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted loss per share is equal to Basic loss per share for all perieds presented as the effect of all stock
aptions and warrants outstanding have been excluded as they are anti-dilutive.

Financial Instruments

Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Sections 3855, financial instruments;
Section 1530, comprehensive income and Section 3856, hedges. Section 3855 prescribes when a financial
instrument is to be recognized on the balance sheet and at what amount, Uncer Section 3855, financial
instruments must be classified into one of five categories: heid-for-trading, heid-to-maturity, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, or other financial liabiities. All financial insl-uments, including
derivatives, are measured at the balance sheet date at fair value except for ioans and receivables, heid-to-
maturity investments, and other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost. The adoption of
these policies has not had a signiticant impact on the financial statement disclosures.

The Company's financial instruments at the bafance sheet date consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-
term investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, amounts due 1o refated parties and accrued
liabilities. The fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying vatue.

Net smelter royalties , but-oul eptions and similar future entitlements or commitments are not considered to
have measurable value until such time as the minera! property interests to which they relate have reached the
davelopment or mining feasibility state.

Asset retirement cbligations

The Company follows CICA Handbook section 3110, relating to the recognition and disclosure of asset
retirement obligations and associated asset ratirement cosls. Management has reviewed the anficipated
obligations and retirement costs of tong-ived assets for knawn obligations under contract, common practice,
or laws and regulations in effect or anticipated and has determined that there are no known or likely material
quantifiable obligations to be recorded to September 30, 2007. The Company is cumently in the exploraticn
stage on its Nevada mineral property interest and has not determined whether sigrificant site reclamation or
environmental remediation costs wil be required. The Company records liability for site reclamation, when
determinable, on a systematic accrual basis in the period in which such costs, if any, can be reasanably
determined.




STINA RESOCURCES LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENOED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2008

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONT'D

P

qa}

)

Stock based compensation

The Company follows the accounting guidelines of the CICA Handbook section 3870, Stock-based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments. Under the guidelines, ali new or re-priced stock-based
awards are measured and recognized using the fair-value method in tha period of grant or ravision, Where
share based awards are subject to vesling provisions the fair value is measured ai the date of grant and
recognized over the expected vesting period. The standard also encourages the use of the fair-value method
for all direct awards ¢f stock, stock appreciation rights, and awards that cafl for settlement in cash or other
assets. :

Non-menetary transactions

All non-monetary transactions are measured at the fair value of the asset surrendered or the asset or sevices
received, whichever is more reliable, unless the transaction tacks commercial substance. The commercial
substanca reguirement is met when the future cash flows are expected to change significantly as a result of
the transaction,

Related party transaclions

Al monetary transactions oceurring wilh related parties in the normal course of operations are measured at
lhe exchanga value which Is determined by management to approximate fair value. Non-monetary
transactions in the normal course of operations that have commercial substance and de not invelve the
axchange of property or product hetd for sale are also measured at the exchange value, All ather related party
tansactions are valued at the camying value.

3

INVENTORIES

2007 2006

Inventories consist of:

Raw materials 2,135 1,918
Finished goods 13,650 12,664




STINA RESOURCES LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SERTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2008

4, EQUIPMENT
2007
$
Accumulated
Cost Amartization Net
Office equipment 3,178 2,056 . 223
Laboratory equipment 4,270 4034 23§
ZLs4d L0 488
2008
$
Accumulated
Cost Amorization Net
Office equipment 3178 2,900 218
Laboratory equipment 4,270 3973 295
La43 L8712 T
5. MINERAL PROPERTY INTEREST

On April 25, 2005, Company entered into a property aption agreement with Vanadium International Co. ("Vanadiumn®)
to purchase a 50% undivided interest in 19 mining claims (the Bisoni McKay Vanadium Property) covering 392.6 acres,
located in Nye County, Nevada, USA, The ogtioned claims are subject to a 2.5% Net Smefter Royalty {NSR) payable

to the vendor.

To eam its interest, the Company Is required to make a series of cash payments {otaling $250,000, issue 1,250,000
shares {0 Vanadium, and fund $700,000 of exploration activities, under tha following timetabte:

Due

Regulatory approval June 3, 2005
Within one year of approval
Within two years of approval
Within three years of approval

Cash
ent:

$ 60,000 (paid)

80,000 (extended)

100,000

$ 250,000

Common
shares

625,000 ({issued)

1,250,000

—tEE

Exploration
Work

150,000
200,000
350,00

$ 700,000

(completed}
(completed)
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MINERAL PROPERTY INTEREST - CONT'D

As of September 30, 2007, the $90,000 ogtion payment remained unpaid. Management has accrued $90,000 to setlle
the payment. Subsequent to year end, Vanadium has provided the Company with an agditional extension for this
payment undil June 30, 2008, There are no other terms or interest pertaining to the extension.

The Company has the right fo acquire the remaining 50% interest, subject to a 2,5% NSR, within five years of the
agreement by paying US $2,000,000,

The Company has staked an additional 18 claims contiguous with the existing claims.

During the year, mineral property exploration expenditures wera incurred as follows:

Bisoni McKay Vanadium Property, Nevada, USA 2007 2006
Acquisition costs: .
Balance, beginning of year $ 545506 § 86,162
Incurred during the period - Option payment, 625,000 shares - 450,000
- Accrual for oplion payment 80,000 -
- Staking and claim costs 12,291 9.144
Batance, and of year 847,797 545,506
Exploration expenditures:

Batance, beginning of year 409,072 168,667
Drilling 82,983 60,628
Geological consulling 52,991 113,842
Assaying, transportation and field supplies 22,730 20,366
Metallurgical testing 33,481 22,278
Permits and bonds 10,478 14,465
Storage 1.461 7.166

Balance, end of year 599,236 408,072

Cumulative mineral property interest expenditures § 1,247,033 $ 654,578




STINA RESOURCES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

6. SHARE CAPITAL

a)

i)

iy

v

}

Authorized
In June 2005, the Company's authorized shara capital changed from 100,000,000 common shares without
par value to an unimited number of common shares without par value.

Issued 2007 2006
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares $ Shares $
Balance, beginning of year 12,224,967 4,080,904 10,399,967 3,218,904
tssued during the year;
For cash:
Options exercised 35,000 17,500 - -
Warrants exercised 25,000 31,250 1,200,000 312,000
Shares i) 137,500 182,500 - -
Share units i) 156,000 212,160 - -
Shares issued for property fii} . - 625,000 450,000
Transter from contributed surplus ) - 8,141 - -
Cancellation of escrow b) (750,000) {7.500) - -
Balance, end of year 11,828,467 4,534,955 12,224 867 4,080,504

On May 30, 2007, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 137,500 shares at a price of
$1.40 per share.

On August 20, 2007, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 156,000 share units at
$1.36 per unit. Each unit consists of one commen share and one half share purchase warrant. Each full
warrant entitles the holder to acquire one additional commen share at $1.70 per share up lo August 20, 2009.
The warrant component of the private placement share units has an estimated aggregate fair value of $34,300
and is included in share capital. The fair vatue of the warrant component was estimated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model under the following assumptions: expected iife 2 years ; volatility 66%; risk free
rate of return 3.45% ; dividend yiald Q%.

The shares issued ara subject to a four month held period expiring Decembar 19, 2007.

On September 19, 2008, the Company issued 625,000 common shares at a value of $0.72 per share pursuant
to the properly option agreement.

The Company records the grant date fair value of stock eptions as a charge to contributed surplus. Thesa
amounts are transferred to share capital upon exercise of the underlying stock options, of which $8,141 (2008
- $nl} was transferred during the year.
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YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

B. SHARE CAPITAL -CONT'D

b) Shares in escrow

During the year, 750,000 shares previously held in'escrow were returned to the Company's treasury and
cancelled. The cancelled escrow shares were originally issued at $0.01 per share. Upon cancetflation, the
subscribed value of the shares was reallocated as contributed surplus.

As at September 30, 2007, 375,000 {2006 - 1,375,000} shares were held in escrow. The 375,000 shares
are subject to a time release escrow agreemant as follows:

Andicipated release dates: , Shares for release
June 14, 2007 ' 93,750
December 14, 2007 93,750
June 14, 2008 93,750
December 14, 2008 93,750
15,000

c) Share purchase warrants

Changes to the number of share purchaée warrants oulstanding are as follows:

Woeighted average Weightod average
Number exercise price ilfe remaining
of shares -$- |ars
Batance at September 30, 2005 1,375,000 0.39 1.0
Exercised 1,200,000} 0.26 -
Balance at September 30, 2006 175.000 125 10
Granted 78,000 .70 2.0
Expired {150,000) 125 B
Exercised (25,000} 1.25 -
Balance at September 30, 2007 78.000 1.0 20
The share purchase warrants outstanding expire as follows:
Enercise
Number of Expiry Price
Warrants Date s

78.000 August 20, 2009 1.70
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YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

6. SHARE CAPITAL — CONT'D

d}  Stock options
Under its Incentive Shate Option Plan, the Company may grant options to empioyees, consultants and
direclors when the number of shares reserved does not exceed 10% of the number of common shares issued
and outstanding at the date of grant. The exercise price of the options granted will be na tess than the
discounted market price of the Campany's shares and the maximum ierm of the options will be 5 years.
Changes 1o the number of stock options vested and exercisable were as follows:
Weighted average  Weighted average
Number exercise price life remaining
of shares -5 {years)

Balance at September 30, 2005 924,994 0.50 4.6

Batance at September 30, 2006 924,994 0.50 ] 3.6

Options forfeited (2.519) .50 -

Exercised {35.000} 0.50 -

Balance at Seplember 30, 2007 887475 0.50 2.7
Each option outstanding entilles the holder to purchase ene common share al an exercise price af $0.50
until May 18, 2010.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

a)

b)

c)

LH

&)

Incurred premises rent in the amount of $14,858 {2006 - $10,488) to a company with common directors. The
rent is payabie on a month to month tenancy.

Sales commissions included in wages, commissions and contract services expense totaliing $30,000 (2006 -
$30,000) were paid to a director of the Company for product sales.

Incurred consulting fees in the amount of 349,000 (2006 - $48,113) payable to a company owned by an officer
for administrative services,

Incurred product marketing fees of $nil (2006 — $3,534) payable to a company owned by an officer for new
product development and marketing services.

Advanced $3,678 (2006 - $nil) to a company controlied by a directer for future overseas product marketing
expenses which has been recorded as prepaid expenses at September 30, 2007.

Related party transactions have been recorded at their doliar exchange amount, which management has determined
approximates fair market vale.
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INCOME TAXES

-The actual income tax provision differs from the expected amounts calcutated by applying the Canadian combined
federal and provinciat corporate income tax rates to the Company's loss before income taxes. The components of

these differences are estimated as follows:

2007 2006
$ 5
Loss befgre income taxes {184,268) {216,088)
Corporate tax rate 34.12% 34.12%
Expected 1ax recovery at statutory rates {63,000) {73,700)
{increase) decrease resulting from:
Changes in estimated corporate tax rates 6,600 15,800
Expiry of non-capital losses carried forward 1,900 16,200
Permanent and other differences 500 400
Change in future tax asset valuation alowance 54,000 41,200
Future income tax provision (recovery) - -
The Company's tax-effected future income tax assets and liabilities are estimated as foliows:
2007 2006
$ H
Potential future income tax assets
Non-capital losses available 249,700 194,400
Capital losses available 1,800 1,800
Share issue costs and other 16,600 17,800
268,100 214,100
Potential future income tax liabilities - -
Net potential future income tax assels 268,100 214,100
(using enacted rates of 30.5%)
Valuation: alfowance
Valuation allowance, opening (214,100) {172,800)
Change in valualion allowance (54,000) {41,200}
Less: valualion allowance {268,100) (214,100}

Net Future income Tax Assets -
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YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

INCOME TAXES =CONT'D

At Septernber 30, 2007, the Company and Northern Seas have combined estimated net operating losses of $818,700
carried forward for income tax purposes which may be available to reduce future laxable income, If not utilized, the
losses expire through 2027 as follows:

Year $
2027 187,700
2028 219,300
2015 198,800
2014 84,200
2010 §7,600
2008 50,200
2008 10,800
818,700

Management has determined that there is insufficient likelinood of recavery to record a future benefit arising from
potential future tax assets. Accordingly, a 100% valuation aliowance has been provided.

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

Changes to the contributed surplus account are as follows:

2007 2006

. - .
Balance, beginning of year 215,188 215,188
Escrow shares cancelled {Note 8b}) 7.500 -
Fair value of oplions exercisad during year {Note 6a(iv)) {8 141) -

Balance, end of year 214,547 215,188
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

10.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

InJune of 20085, the Company completed its change of business application with regulatory authorities. The Company
continues to sell and market natural alternative health food products for people and animals. The primary business of
the Company is in mineral exploration and development.

2007
Mineral Health Corporate
Qperating segments Exptoration Foods & Other Consol'!dated
Total re;enue $ - $ 64,008 $ 2,954 $ 66962
Segment gross profil 3 - $ 47,355 $ - $ 47,355
General and administrative expenses 3 - $ 70,079 § 164858 $ 234,937
Net Profit (Loss) ~ H - §(22,724) % (161,904) $ (184,628)
Identifisble assets $ 1,247,033 § 42710 $ 237453 $ 1,527,196
Geographical location Canada USA Total
Customer sales § 35015 § 28093 $ 62,008
Identifiable assets $ 271,929 $ 1,255,267 § 1,527,186
2008
Minerai Health Caorporate
Operating segmenis Explaration Foods & Other Consoligated
Total reverse H - $ 76811 $ 2,016 § 78,827
Segment gross profit H - $ 56,473 $ - $ 56,473
General and administrative expenses s - $ 103,925 $ 170,652 $ 274,577
Net Profit (Loss) $ - $(47,452) $ (168,636) $ (216,088)
Identifiable assets § 954578 3 339% § 200,764 $ 1,189,279
_Geographical location Canada USA' Total

Customer sales $ 43,507 $ 33,304 $ 78,811
Identifiable assets $ 232362 $ 0956917 § 1,189,279
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YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006

1. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

2007 2006

Due to related parties: _3 _$_
Officer ' 1,222 1,222
Company controtled by a director - 8,622
Company controfled by an officer _1.160 13,300

8,382 23,144

Amounts due to and from related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no specified terms of
repayment.

12. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the 2008 figures have been reclassified to conform with the current yéar‘s presentation.
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STINA RESOURCES LTD.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND UP
TO THE DATE OF January 2, 2008

THIS REPORT DATED: JANUARY 8, 2008

This discussion should be read in cormjunction with the Company's annual avdited financial
statlements dated September 30, 2007, and intemal financial statements for the quarters ending June
30, 2007, March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 which are incorporsted by reference to this
discussion. .

1, NATURE OF BUSINESS:

The Company's primary activity is the exploration of the Bisoni McKay Vanadium Property in
northern Nevada. The Company also is engaged in the health food znd supplement product industry.
The Company’s shares are traded on the TSX Venture Exchange.

Minersl Exploration
In 2005 the Company entered into an option agreement with Vanadium International Corp. for 50%
of the Bisoni McKay property rights. The Bisoni McKay Vanadium property is located in north
central Nevada, just cast of Eurcka, in Nye County. The company now holds rights to 37 mineral
claims on the property.

Exploration in 2005 included 11 severse circulation holes gnd 5 dizmond drill holes, in addition to
related fietd work and surface sampling, as Phase 1 of a 3 Phase program outlined by JA Mine. At
that time JA Mine recalculated the potentia) for the project 1o be between 16 and 24 million tons of
vanadium pentoxide (V205) on the Northem Section of the property alone, with average grades of
0.5 at the lower tonnages and 0.2 at the higher tonnages. Additional potential tonnage has yet to be
calculated on southern sections B & C of the property,

In 2007 as part of Phase I outlined by JA Mine at the conclusion of Phase 1, the Company drilled an
additional 12 reverse circulation holes on Northern Section *A” as 100 foot intervals to RC BMK-04,
RC BMK-05 and RC BMK-06, drilled in 2005, directly 100 feet north of core hole DD BMK-03-01
(2905). The result is a grid with 100 foot RC interval drilling that extends 700 fect Jong by 100 fect
wide, 2nd which is cureently being evaluated by Mapiek PTY of Lakewood, CO for the purposes of
developing 2 resource estimation report under Cenadian NI-43-10t guidelines, The Company expects
to receive the report in early 2008, in which measured, indicated and inferred resource estimations
will be presented for this particular sub-section of Northern Section “A."

Currently, the Company is completing an updated technical report on the Bisoni McKay property,
updating the report prepared by JA Mine in 2004 then updated o 2005, This new report is being
completed by Ed Ullmer, who was previously employed by JA Mine as a geologist, including on
Phase 1 of the Bisoni McKay project, before JA Mine principle John James passed away in 2006.

1n 2006 and 2007 metallurgical testing was conducted at Hazen Research in Golden, CO on samples
from 2005 drilling on the Bisoni McKey Northern Section “A." While this test work can only be
considered preliminary at this stage and a fiowsheet has yet 10 be established for patential preduction,
very encouraging results were observed. Recovery levels as high as 92% using an acid pug/ leaching
method on oxidized material and levels close to 70% using & roast/ leach method on carbonaceous
material were observed.
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LBrior Exploration

Prior exploration, particularly reverse circulation driling in the 1960"s and 1970s was conducted on
the property, however the results are too old and incomplete 1o be considered under Regulations 43-
181, for the reporting of mineral reserves prior 1o the option agreement. Therefore, in November 2004
Vanadium Imemational Co. drilted two reverse circulation holes on the property, and completed

extensive surface trench sampling,

Assays from the first reverse circulation hole (drilted in November 2004 by Vanadium Iatemational
Co.) indicated a grade of 0.33% V205 (vanadium pentoxide) from & to 60 feet, and 0.27% from 235
to 285 fect.

20038 Exploration by Stina

Reverse Circulation and Core drilling on the property by Stira in 2005 showed very promising
mineralization, including the following highlights:

#) 75 fee1 of 0.95% V205 contained within 323 feet of 0.46% V205, in DDH-BMK-05-01

b) 132 feet of 0.88% V205 contained within 345 feet of 0.53% V205 in DDH-BMK - 05-02

€) 116 fect of 0.60 V205 contained within 475 feet of V205 in DDH-BMK-05-03

d) 300 feet of 0.45% V203 in reverse circulation drill hole RC EMK-05-01

¢) 120 fect 0f 0.55% V205 and 170 feet of 0.47% V205 in RC BMK-05-02

) 120 feet of 0.55% V205 in RC BMK.-05-03

RC = Reverse Circulation; DDH'= Diamord Drill Hole (core hole); BMK = Bisoni McKay

Assays for vanadium pentoxide (V205) from trench sampling were 35 feet of 0.21 per cent over 35
feet for trench 23, 0,24 per cent over 95 feet for trench 24 and 0.18 per cent over 40 feet for trench 25.
Also, as previously reported, the company intends 10 use core drilling to twin Heela's hole No.
BMK 8 which averaged 0.47 per cent V2035 over the fusli length of 409 feet, and included 90 fect of
0.81 per cent V205 from 235 feet to 325 feet,

7 lorati ting
In 2007, as part of Phase I1, the Company drilled an additional |2 reverse circulation holes on
Northern Section “A™ as 100 foot intervals to RC BMK-04, RC BMK-05 and RC BMK-06, drilled in
2005, directly 100 feet north of core hole DD BMK-05-01 (2005). The result is a grid with 100 foot
RC interval drilling that extends 700 feet fong by 100 feet wide, and which is curmrently being
evaluated by Maptck PTY of Lakewood, CO for the purposes of developing a resource estimation
report under Canadian NI-43-101 guidelines.

i
8) Inclusive section of 240 feet of 0.52% V204 0n kole RC BMK 07-03
b) Inclusive section of 350 feet of 0.47% V,050n hole RC BMK 07-03
c} Inclusive section of 220 feet of 0.4% V;040a hole RC BMK 07.04
d) Inchusive section of 85 feet of 0.50% V05 0n bole RC BMK 07-04
¢) [Inchusive section of 120 feet of 0.47% V305 0n hole RC BMK 07-05
f} Inclusive section of 270 feet of 0.38% V20 on hole RC BMK 07-06
g) Inclusive scction of 95 feet of 0,43% V,050n hole RC BMK 07-06
h) Inclusive section of 65 feet of 0.54% V;0,0n hole RC BMK 07-06
i) Inclusive section of 235 feet of (.33% V#0s0n hole RC BMK 07-07
1) Inclusive section of 255 feet of 0.47% V20y0n hole RC BMK 07-08
k) Inclusive section of 50 feet of 0.57% V20 on hole RC BMK 07-08
1) Inclusive section of 170 feet of 0.44% V20 on hole RC BMK 07-08
m} loclusive section of 95 feet of 0.65% V305 on hole RC BME 07-10
) Inclusive section of 200 feet of 0.57% V:0yon bole RC BMK §7-10
o} Inclusive section of 95 feet of 0.65% V;0;0n hole RC BMK ¢7-11
p) Inclusive section of 135 feet of 0.40% V;0son hole RC BMK 07-12
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loration et and future work on the Bisoni ay Vanadium Proper,
The objective of Phase 11 is to attempt to determine inferred andfor indicated reserves of vanadium
pentoxide (V2035) under the guidelines of Canadian Regulation 43-101, specifically on the north end
of the property, where Phase I and Phase H drilling showed song grades and substantial drilling
width,

Based on Stina's 2005 drilling results, the historical 6.1 million tons estimation of mineralization was
expanded to a 16 to 24 miltion ton mineralization target extending 10 600 fect belew surface with
grades ranging from 0.5% V205 for the lower tonnage to 0.2% V205 for the higher tonnage,
(technical report revision March 2006 by JA Mine)

Disclaimer: There has been insufficient exploration at this time to define a mineral resource on the
Bisoni McKay property, and it is uncertain as to whether, or not, further exploration will result in the
discovery of a mineral resource on the property.

To complete Phase II, spproximately 35 more reverse circulation and 10 diamond drill holes are
required on Northern Section “A,” in addition to 5 reverse circulation holes on Southern Section “C.”
Phase IF will also include at least two Preliminery Assessments, outlining in greater dewil an
economic assessment of the property potential, The first is scheduled for the spring of 2008 to assess
the potential of the grid dritling on Northern Section “A" conducted in 2007. The second would be
conducted at the conclusion of Phase II, assessing the potential of the entire Northern Section “A.™
Additionally, further metallurgical testing has becn ptanned for in Phase 11,

The total budget to complete Phase II is estimated at $1.5M CAD. The Company has incurred
$599,236 in exploration expenses, with all costs having been capitalized.

Abaut Vanadinm

Vanadium pentoxide (V205) is normally guoted in United States currency per pound. On December
1, 2007 the quoted price on the London Metals Exchange was approximately § 8.50 (U.5.) per pound.
A grade of 0.10 per cent V205 is equivaient 1o approximately 2.0 pounds of V205 per short ton
(2,000 pounds).

Vanadium's principal us¢ is as an alloying ¢lement in steel and the addition of small amounts of
vanadium 1o ordinary carbon steel can significantly incresse its strength and improve both its
toughness and ductility. Such high-strength low-alloy (HSLA) steels are vital for high rise buildings,
bridges, pipelines, aerospace technology, golf clubs and autemotive/ truck marufacturing, Due 1o the
inherent weight-saving qualities, HSLA steels are also much in demand by the space and defense
programs. Today, about haif of the world's steel manufacturing uses vapadium. Vanadium treated
HSLA steels offer significant savings in processing through lower steel rolling tempemtures, minimal
heat treatment and increased strength-to-weight ratios. Other important uses of vanadium inchide its
use in titanium alloys for high temperature applications such as aircraft turhine components.
Vanadium s also used in the manufacturing of specific pharmaceuticals and is being used in large
batteries that are being developsd as power storage urits where power supply is likely to be
interrupted or service is deliberately intermittent,
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aturn] Health Food Manufact a arketfng — North eas Produci
The company remains engaged in the alternative natural health food manufacturing and wholesaling
business and maintains a product lne of natura! food supplements marketed in Canada, the United
States and intemationally under the brand name Northern Seas Products, Sea Horse and Pet Wonder.

The company continues to explore opportunities to develop and sharket new products in this field
based on marker trends, ongoing indusiry research and findings, in addition to various research
conducted on natural remedies for grthritic conditions, prostrate problems and other angoing healih
problems. Primarily, the company markets on a distributor and wholesale basis to health stores, health
facilities, foreign distributars and manufacturers, pet food stores end zoos. Retail sales are made on &
lesser scale, including over the intemet, The company also produces educational and promotionat
literature 1o aid consumers in their use of the products. The company has sales offices in Toronto,
ON, Richmond, BC and Blaine, WA, USA,

The company manufactures under the company division, Northern Seas Manufacturing, both in the
U.5. and in Cenada. Raw materials incorporated in production are subjeet to regular inspection and
testing for purity and against contamination. in addition, only government-licensed facilities are used.
Products include shark cartitage capsules and powders, which also may include saw palmeno,
glucosamine and chordroitin sulfate, devil’s claw and other natural herbal ingredients as additional
additives.

Under the Nerthern Seas brand name, Super Sea Horse, the company produces and markets natural
health products for horses, elephants, and other large animals suffering primarily from arthritic joint
problems, although the products also assist in preventative health and providing increased energy.
Northern Seas also produces a simifar canine/ feline product called Pet Wonder, which provides the
same matural choice for houschold dogs and cats that Super Sea Horse does for larger performing
animals. The product was a natural choice, a derivative of the company’s most popular product of
stmilar content for humans suffering from arthritic problems. Since inception, Pet Wonder has opened
a whole new marketplace for Northern Seas, and Pet Wonder has become a staple product of the
company.

The overall sales of this company division (Northern Seas Products) to date have decreased by 17%
comparatively to the same period in 2006 (year-cod), mainly as a result of a coptinaed decrease in
human line health food products.

2. OPERATIONS DETAIL AND FINANCIAL CONDITION:

(a) Acquisitions & Dispositions:
(See Exploration, News releases and Material Changes below — section 3)

{b) Selected Financial Information:

This discussion should be read in conjuncticn with the Company’s annual sudited financis!
statements dated September 30, 2007 zod internal financial statements for the quarter ending June
2007, March 2007 and December 31, 2006 which are incorporated by reference to this discussion.
The company management has discussed the current financial results for the period ending September
30, 2007 with the directors and officers of the company, and amongst themselves respectively.
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Summary of Financial Years
The following table sets forth selected audited finencial information of Stina resources Lid. for the
last three completed financial years,

FISCAL YEARS ENDED
September 30, 2007 | September 30, 2006 | September 30, 2005
Total Revenue £4,008 $ 76,811 89,356
Gross Profit 47,355 $56473 52272
Operating Expenses 234,937 $ 274 577 474 738
Net Income {Loss} (184 €28) $ (218,088) {409,158}
toss Per Share (0.02) ${0.02) $ (0.04)
Total Assets 5,527 196 $ 1,189,278 $623513

Summary of Quarterly Results
* The following table sets forth selected (unaudited) quarterly finarcial information for each of the last
eight most recently completcd quarters:

QUARTERS ENDED

Sept. 30, 2007 [ June 30, 2007 | Mar. 31, 2007 Dec. 31, 2006
Total Revenue $ 16,714 16,953 16,433 $ 13,908
Gross Profit $ 13,481 12,230 11,304 10,340
Oper. Expenses $70,328 48 B14 76,088 39,707
Gain (Loss) {107,107} {34,789) {63,664} {29,367}
{Loss) Par Share $ {0.009) ({0.003) {0.005) {0.002)
Total Assets 31,527,196 1,312,291 1,098,621 1,152,080
Total Liabilities $ 145,708 $ 54415 78,964 68,741

QUARTERS ENDED

Sept. 30, 2006 | June 30, 2006 Mar. 31, 2006 Det. 31,2005 -
Total Revenue 20,180 22.640 16,199 $ 17,792
Gross Profit 16,047 16,425 11,451 12,550
Oper. Exp 87 805 34,794 858,764 63,214
Gain [Loss} $ (71,758) {18,172) (TEET4) (49.485)
{Loss) Per Share % {0.008) {0.002} {0.007) {0005}
Total Assets $1,180.279 $5545M § 406 892 554,021
Total Liabilities §$76,573 $122,108 $ 56,057 $36712

** The quarter ending Jure 30, 2006 Total liabilities inctuded $52,000 in share subscription advance, payment for purchase
waITants in transit. .

and renovations to company offices, as well a5 re-classification of Northern Seas office ¢xpenditures
(see Expenditure and Comparison Variances — Northern Seat Division below}), $19,498 in travel and
promotion mainly due 1o significant increases in company promotion, advertising campaigns and
promotional mavel.

Expenditure Decreases: $33,374 in consulting fees, 6,235 in exchange loss, 11,965 in rent mainly
due to a one-time settlement made for back-rent in 2006 and charged to the period.
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Expenditure Comparison and Varianges — Mingral Exploration Division:

During the period Mineral Exploration Divisica expenditures and accruals totaling $292,455 were
classified as Mineral Interest in company assets, for a total of $1,247,033 as of September 30, 2007

This total encompasses the following non-exploration expenditures:

Initial Payment to VIC 360,000
Accrued Option Payment 90,000
QOption Payment 10 VIC of 625,000 escrow shares 450,000
Additional staking costs not in original budget 26,556
Total $626,556

Comparative mineral property exploration expenditures were incumred as follows:

Bisoni McKay Vanadium Property, Nevada, USA 2007 2006
Acquisition costs:
Balance, beq. of year $ 545506 | § 86,362
Incusred during the period - Option payment, 625,000 - 450,000
shares
-Accrued Option Payment 90,000
- Staking and claim costs 12.291 0,144 |
Balance, end of year 647,797 545,506
Exploration expenditures:

Balance, beg. of year 409,072 169,657
Drilling 62,583 60,828
Geological consulting 52891 113,812
Assaying, transportation and field supplies 22,780 20,8566
Metatlurgical testing 33461 22,278
Permits and bonds 10478 14,465
Storage 7461 71.166

Batance, end of year 593,236 409,072

Cumiulative mineral property interest expanditures $ 1,247033 $ 954578

Total expenditures for the Phase I program were originaliy estimated at US $224,000 {(approximately
CAD $278,000), plus approximatety US $30,000 {approximately CAD $37,200) for metallurgical
testing. A 9% contingency rate had been established in these budgeted expenditures,
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Lhase § Expendipures:

Additional staking expenditures had exceeded budgetary estimates by 32,656, mainly a5 a result of
recently increased anmual fees for the filing of the claims; Engineering, reporting and field work
expendinores had txceeded budgoiary estimates by $53,961, mainly as a result of additional
requirements for engineers on-site and the on-site decision 1o drill additional diamond drill holes;
Exploration drilting expenditures had exceeded budgetary estimates by $26,126, mainly s a result of
increzsed drilling rig costs and the on-site decision to drill additional diamond drill holes,
mobilization snd fuel charges. Permits & Bonds expenditures had exceeded budgetary estimates by
$3,583 mainly as a result of the full transfer of bond from Vanadium International to Stina; Assaying
Costs have tacecded budgetary estimates by $2,435, mainly as a msult of addisions! storage
requirements a1 ALS Chemex.

Total Phase 1 expenditures were $80,721 (29%) over-budget. This budgetary overrun is primarily as a
result of decisions made on-site 10 drill additional diamord core holes, increased drill rig and
mobilization costs, and unforeseen requirements for additional engineers on-site, and additional
figldwork.

Additionally,  $90,000 option payment was due to Vanadium International Co. (VIC). On December
28, 2007 the Company reccived a letter from Vanadium Intemational expressing an extension for this
payment until June 30, 2008,

On Decernber 23, 2007 the Company made a partiaf payment 1o VIC of $15,000 towrards the $90,000
owing,

LPhase [] Expenditures: -

A total of $62,983 was spent on drilling 12 additional reverse circulation holes on Northern Section A
(s2e section 3 ~ Current Exploration below) - .

Additionally $52,991 was spent on geological consulting, $22,790 on transport and assaying, and
533,461 on metallurgical testing during the period.

Phase [! is underway and a budget of $1.5M CAD has been estimated »s a total cost for this phase.

xpendifure Comparison and Variances = Northern Seas Divisian;
Expenditure Increases: §1,144 in rent, due 1o rent increases and the fact that the previous year's
financials indicated a different allocation between the sales office and head office,
Expenditure Decreases: $1,709 in Advertising and promation; $8,640 in Bad Debts; $6,291 in Office

Liguidity apd Solvency

The company’s liquidity will depend upon its ability to rise financing for the continued development
of the Bisoni McKay property in addition to the ability to continue to market Northern Stas products
at a profitable markup.

During the period ended June 30, 2007 over the same period in 2006 cash resources increased by
$194,758 mainky as a result of financings during the year for Phase Il exploration and working capital
allocation. At the period ending September 30, 2007 the Company had & working capitsl surplus of
$133,996 (2006 — $157,554)

As of September 38, 2007 2 $90,000 payment was due to Vanadium International Corp. (VIC) as per
the option agreement between the two parties. In December 2007, s 515,000 payment was made
fowards this amount and an extension was granted Stina by VIC until June 30, 2008. Stina intends to
raise capital for this payment in conjunction with financing of the Bisoni McKay Phase [,
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Capital Resources

The company’s liquidity will depend upon its ability to market Northern Seas' products at the current
markup of over 100%, as well 25 the ability to raise additioral financing to meet exploration
requirements and working capital abilgations, Twa financings were completed during 2007, raising a
total of $404,660 in working capital and exploration funds for the Bisoni McKay Property.

With respect to & trend of decreasing product safes over the past few years, the company hos been
exploring the future of the Northern Seas division. The company intends to cortinue operation of the
Northern Seas Products division in the interim, but to review with company directors and officers, the
direction apd future of Northern Seas Products with respect to its profitability and economic
feasibility.

Sommary of Securities

In June 2005 the Company elected to increase the allowable issucd shares from 100,000,000 10 an
untimited amount. On September 20, 2007 11,828, 467 common shares were issued and outstanding.
750,000 shares hcld in escrow by Sidney Mann expired in October 2000 according to the original
agreement in 1990. These shares were cancelled on December 8, 2006 at a par value of $0.01 per
share, :

2007 2006
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares $ Shareg $
Balance, beginning of year 12,224,967 4,080,904 10,398,967 3,318,904
Issued during the year:
For cash;
Options exarcised 35,000 17,500 - -
Warrants exercised 25,000 31,250 1,200,000 312,000
Shares i) 137,500 192,500 - -
Shara units i) 156.000 212,160 - -
Shares issued for property i) - - 625,000 450,000
Transfer frorm contributed iv) - 8,141 - -
surplus
Cancellation of escrow b) {750,000) {7.500) - -
Balance, end of year 11,828,467 4,534,955 12,224,967 4,080,904

i} On May 30, 2007, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of
137,500 shares at g price of $1.40 per share.
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i} On August 20, 2007, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of
156,000 share units at $1.36 per unit. Each unit consists of one common share and
one half share purchase warrant. Each full warrant entitles the holder to acquire one
additional common share at $1.70 per share up to August 20, 2009, The warrant
component of the private placement share unit has an aggregate fair value of $34,300
and is included in share capital. The fair value of the warrant component was
esttmated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model under the following
assumprions; expected life 2 years ; volatility 66%; risk free rate of retuen 3.45% |
dividend yield 0%.The shares issued are subject 10 a four month hold period expiring
December 19, 2007.

itf} On September 19, 2006, the Company issued 625,000 common shares at & deemed
price of $0.89 per share pursuant te the property option. These shares are subject 1o a
36 month escrow time release agreement as follows:

Anticipated refease Shares for release
dates .
June 14, 2006 62,500 (released)
December 14, 2006 93,750 (rcleased)
June 14,2007 93,750  (released)
December 14, 2007 93,750  (rcleased)
June 14, 2008 . 93,750
December 14, 2007 93,750

—£625,000

iv} The Company records the grant date fair value of stock options as a charge to
coutributed surplus, These amounts are transferred to share capital upon exercise of
the underlying stock options, of which $8,141 {2006 - $nil) was transferred during

the year. .
ha) r¢hase warpants outstandin, tembe 2007:
Number of Expiry Price
Warrants Date $

—ZBONQ  August20, 2008 1.70
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Stock options

Under the Company’s Incentive Share Option Plan, the Company may grant options to employees,
consultants and directors when the number of shares reserved does not exceed 10% of the issued and
outstanding share capital at the date of grant. The exercise price of the options granted will be na less
than the discounted market price of the Company’s shares and the maximum term of the options will
be 5 years.

The following stock options dre vested and exercisable:

Nurnber Weighted Weighted
Shares Averags Average

Exercise life

Price ramaining

(years}

Batance at Sepiember 30, 2006 824,594 0,50 3.8
Options forfeited (2,519) 0.50

Exercised (35,000) 0.50 -

Balance at September 30, 2007 BOT 475 0.50 2.7

Each option eatitles the holder to purchase ane commen share at an exercise price of $0.50 until May
i8, 2010

The initial fair value of the options granted was estimated at $2135,188 of $0.23 per option, and
ailocated as follows:

2006/07 2005
3 H
Consultants - 40,711
Qirectors and officers - 174477
- 215,188

The fair value of the opticns weas estimeted using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode! under the
following assumpticns: Risk free intercst rate 3.45%, volatility 92%, expected life of 5 years, and a
0% dividend yield.

Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected price
volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
and therefore the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value
of the Company’s stock options granted.
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¢} Related Party Transactions

The Company enterad into the following transactions with related parties:

a)

b}

<)

d)

e)

The Company incurred premises rant in tha amount of $14,856 (2006 - $10,489) to a
company with commean directars, The rent is payable on 8 month to month tenancy.

Sales commissions included in wages, commissions and contract services expense
totalling $30.000 (2006 - $30,000) were paid to a director of the Cornpany for product
sales.

The Company incumed consulting fees in the amount of $49,000 (2006 - $48,113)
payable to a company owned by an officer for administzative services.

The Company incurred product marketing fees of $nil {2006 - $3,534) payable to a
compary owned by an officer for new product development and markeling services.

The Company advanced $3,878 (2006 - $nil) to a company controlled by a director
for future overseas product marketing expenses which has been recorded as prepaid
expenses at September 30, 2007,

Related party transactions have been recorded at their dollar exchange amount, which
management has determined approximates fair market value,

d) Due Ta Related Parties

The amount due to a related party is due to a company controlted by a directar. The amount
due director is non-interest bearing ard has no specified terms of repayment.

Sept W0 Sept 30
2007 2006
Due to related parties: ’
Officer 1,222 1,222 |
Company controlled by a director - 8,622
Compaay controlled by o officer 1160 13300
8382 23,144

The amounts due to related parties are non-interest bearing and have no specified terms of
repayment,
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3. EXPLORATION, NEWS RELEASES & MATERIAL CHANGE REPORTS

On January 27, 2005 the company eptered into an option sgreement with Vanadium Inernational
Corp. (see news release dated January 27, 2005) te acquire 100% of the rights 1o 19 mining claims
covering 392.6 acres, located in Nye county, Nevada, USA.

To eamn its interest, the Company is required to make a series of cash payments totaling $250,000,
isstie 1,250,000 shares 1o Vanadium, as well as fund $700,000 of exploration activities, as follows:

Cash . Commaon Exploration

| Dug nt: shares
Ragutatory $ 60,000 | {paid) - -
approval -
June 3, 2005
Within one - - $ 150,000 | (completec)
year of
approval
Within two $ 50,000 | (dus) 625,000 | {issued) | $ 200,000 | {compiotad)
years of .
approval
Within three $ 100,000 625,000 $ 350,000
years of
approval

$ 250,000 1,250,000 $_700,000

The Company also has the right to acquire the remaining 50% interest, subject 10 a 2.5% NSR, within
five years of the agreement by paying US 52,000,000,

xplh ipn Event ing the Pri iod

In Seprember 2005 the Company contracted Kettle Drilling of Cocur d'Alene, Idaho and drilled 1,024
feet of diamond core drilling on the Bisoni McKay property. Included was a fence of three holes on
the north end of the property, immediately adjacent to Vanadium International’s second reverse
circulation hole drilled in 2004, as well as adjacent to Hecla RC holes BMK 17, 18 and 19
respectively, each of which showed strong grades of V2035 at various intervals,

Holes were drilled at angles of 45 degrees, 57.5 degrees and 66 degrees 10 the northwest.

A second fence of two diamond care holes was drilted on the southern end of the property adjacent to
Vanzadium International’s first reverse circulation hole, and also to Hecla's RC holes BMK 6, 7 and 8
respectively. All four of these RC holes showed reasonable V205 grade at various intervals, This
was the first diamond drilling ever conducted an the property.

Results of this diamond drilling showed very encouraging results from the northern fence, including
grads much higher than from any other drilling on the property. {sce news release dated October 18,
2005)

The results from the southern fence of diamond drilling were less encouraging. The Company
encountered technical difficulties in drilling these two holes and eventually had to sbandon the
second hole of this fence. The angle of the holes was reduced to 35 degrees from the planned 57.5
degrees to attempt to avercome these difficulties. As a result, the Company believes that it may have
overshot the zone of mineralization encountered the year before by Vanadium International in its




Stina Resoxrcey Lid
Manzgement Discussion & Analysis ~ Page 13

reverse circulation drilting. At this time the Company released the resules of further wench sampling
at surface, (see news release dated October 26, 2005) :

In November 2005, the Company contracied O'Keefe Drilling of Butte, MT 1o condust approximately
3,600 te 4,000 feet of reverse circutation (RC) drilling, stepping out to the north and south of the two
diamond drill fences. O"Keefe was the same drilling company contracted by Vanadium International
Co to dnill two RC hotes in November 2004,

10 RC holes were drilled at 45 degrees to the northwest at step out intervals of 210 feet from the two
diamond drill fences; 3 holes to the north of the northern fence, 3 to the south of the northern fence,
and three holes drilled to the north of the southem diamond dnill fence, One RC hole was drilled
vertically in Trench ASC50.

Results from the three RC holes stepping out south of the nonhem diamond deill fenee were released
on November 29, 2005, end which were very encouraging to the Company.
(see news release dated 11/19/0%)

On January 11, 2006, the Company announced further drilling results from the northemn section of the
Bisoni McKay property. (sce news release dated January 11, 2006}

These results were from three reverse circulation holes drilled at 210 foot step outs from the diamond
drill fence drilied on the nosthemn section in September 2005, Results from these three holes were
very encouraging to the Company. The Company has now drilled into the main mineralization zone at
the northemn end of the claim block over a strike length of 2pproximately 1,300 feet.

On February 8, 2006, the Company announced the completion of Phase I, and that the technical report
prepared by JA Mine was being updated. (see news release dated February 8, 2006). A1 that time the
Company also announced the proposed $1.35M USD Phase 11 for funther exploration of the Bisoni
McKay property, outlined by JA Mine, Phase Il would include further core drilling and reverse
circulation drilling totaling over 33,000 feet, metelturgica! testing and a scoping study, focusing
primarily on the north section of the property, where strong mineralization was encountered in Phase
[, and also where mineralization definition was more easily mssessed, In this press release the
Compzny also announced the final results of reverse circulation drilling from the Phase I program,
from holes drilled south of the northern drilling section, which were received as very acceptable. The
Company has initiated plans for financing of this Phase I program,

In March 2006 the Company received an updated Technical report from JA Mine with
recommendations to proceed to Phase Il of the exploration of the Bisoni McKay vanadium property
in Nevada. This report presented the following conclusions and rendations in summary:

Conclusions

(i} the results of Phase 1 add substaptially to the 2004 exploration results and
available historic data and documentation contained in Technical Report
2005, thus confirming thet the Bisoni McKay Property is a vanadium
prospect of merit an which further exploration and development is warranted,
in particular, at Northern Area “A™ and Southerm Area “C™;

(i) in Northern Area “A™, the vanadium mineralization is stratabound and strataform
within carbonaceous shale over a strike length exceeding 2,000 ft with much
of the former carbonsceous shale oxidized near surface. Overall widths of
oxidized and unoxidized zones have not been established but appear 1o range
up to 8 combined width of 360 ft;
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(iif) in Northern Area A", the mineralization will probably be up to four times

targer than the target of 4.0 and 6.0 million st extending to 150 and 200 fi
below the surface, postulated in Technical Report 2005, and over a
significantly shorter strike length. The pew targer can be expressed as 16
mitlion to 24 millicn st with & grade manging o 0.5% \"20s for the lower
tormage, and 0.2% VZO, for the higher tonnage, extending 1o £ 600 ft below
surface. The potentia] quantities and grades within the aforestated range are
conceptual in nature since there has been insufficient exploration to define a
Mineral Resource, as defined within N1 43-101, on the Bisoni McKay
Property;

(tv) in Southern Area “B", the stratzbound mineralization intersected in the Woodruff

Formation ranged im thickness from 45 to 150 feet along a trend of abow
£,100 fi of carbonaceous shale. At the south end of the area st Trench ASSOC
intersected host rocks have becn structurally disrupted in a panem that has
yet 10 be completely understood;

(v) the exisience of a pronounced supergene blanket of vanadium enrichment at and

below the redox boundary has not been verified. Most of the vanadium
distribution appears to be primary-syngenetic with some minor
redistribution/redeposition; and

{vi) the trenches sampled on the arca labeled Southem Area “C”, indicote the

presence of at least 1,200 feet of vanadiferous strata,

(i) further surface mapping, using the Global Satellite Imagery (GSI) obtained in

2005, as a base. Surface surveying is also rccommended to determine
extremities of claim boundaries and lay out base and section Hnes in
Northtrn Arex “A” and Southern Area “C™.

(ii} drilling 11 core boles and 45 RC holes, totzlling 6,530 & and 24,760 f1,

respectively in Northern Area “A™.

The combination of core and RC drilling in Nerthern Area “A™ is designed to
provide sufficient data for resources to be estunated in tompliance with
Canedian National Instrument 43-101. The infif] drilling within Northern
Area “A” will be carried out at approximately 105 ft (+ 32 m) centers, over
approximately 2,000 i of strike length, and provide data to + 600 £ below
surface;

(iii) drilling five (5) RC boles at 210 ft centers (+ 65 m}) as preliminary exploration

over 840 fi of strike length in Southern Ares “C™;

(iv} mineralogical and metallurgical test work on samples coilected from core and

RC drilling in Phase 1. The test work should be carried out on discrete
samples from oxidized, transition and fresh rock zones; and

(v) staking

The estimated costs for Phase 1 are CAD $1.5 million and the duration is expected 1o be between six
and nine months, subject to availability of drilling rigs.

The updated Technical Repart was submitted to the TSX Venture Exchange and is alse available on
the Company website a1 www.stiraresources.com,
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In April 2006 the Company contracted Hazen research of Colorado for the metallurgical and Icach
testing of vanadium from core and reverse circulation drilling on the Bisoni McKay property in the
fall of 2005. (see news release dated April 6, 2006)

Hazen carried owt mineraiogical cheracterization to determine the mode of occurrence of vanadium,
followed by two sets of tests on samples from three zones: the oxidized zone (mudstone), the
transition zone (mudstone te carbonaccous shale) and the unoxidized zone (carbonaceous shale).

The tests comprised of:

[£)] dircet acid leaching with sulfuric acid, at two grinds and &t two temperatures, for a total of 12
experiments; and

(ii) roasting experiments, with at least four roasting conditions for samples from cach zone,
foblowed by appropriate leaching, cither alkaline or acidic, i.c., & minimum of 12
roasting/leaching experiments.

The tests were designed to definc the sieps and conditions needed to obtain reasonable vanadium
extraction and ¢xamine the reagent consumptions in leaching and roasting, and thus develop the first
stages of a process flowsheet. The cost of the tesiing was $US 49,500,

n ~ Pha
The Company received final test results in Jamuary 2007, and 3 report on recovery of oxidized
vanadium penioxide using an acid pug/ leach recovery method, including some results as high as
95%. Test resulis on transition end carbonaceous material showed recavery as high as 70% and 75%
of vanadiurmt pentoxide using a roast/ leach recovery method. Hazen Rescarch slse recommended
further mesallurgical test work to continue the refinement of these processes, as well as explore other
recovery options. {see news release dated February §, 2007}

In May 2007, the Company contracted O’Keefe Drilling of Boise, ID to conduct reverse circulation
(RC) drilling on Northern Section “A™ of the Bisoni McKay property, with respect ta target drill sites
outlined in the techrical report by JA Mine, revised in November 2006. A total of 12 RC holes were
drilled according to schedule, for a total of 5,130 fest, (se¢ news relcase dated May 23, 2007)

This drilling campaign was comprised of step-out holes at 100 oot intervals directly posth for 700
feet along strike length from core hole fence DDH-05-1/2/3. Additionally, drilling was conducted
paralle] to the immediate west by 100 feet and north by 700 feet. The result of this campaign is a
section approximately 700 feet long by 100 feet wide, with 100 foot intervals, immediately to the
north of core hole fence DDH-05 and inclusive of RC holes BMK-05-04, BMK-05-05 and BMK-05-
06 drilled by the Company in 2005, {see map below)
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NORTHERN SECTION "A*
i BISONI MCKAY PROPERTY
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Resuhis of the twelve holes have been summarized in Table | below. The results of Hole N* RC
BMEK 07-01 through RC BMK 07-12 show values for varadium (V), vanadivm pentoxide {¥,0O5) and
contained V,0; in pounds per short ton (1b/st).

{See news release dared June 20/07)

Table 1
., | Enterval (feet) v V30, V10,
Description [ From | To | Length | (%) | (&) | (bsst)

Hole N* RC BMK 07-01 — declined 45°, azimuth N288°, length 220 feet.

Siltstone, fine-grain, oxidized. 0 5 5| .165 259 5.89
Sittstone, med. grain, oxidized 5 140 135 [ 196 351 7,02
Silistone/Sendstone 135 220 201 021 038 0.78
Total hole 320 F 132 236 4.1
Haole N* RC BMK 07-02 — declined 45°, azimuth N288°, length 320 feet,

Siltstone, oxidized 0 45 45| .149 266 5,33
Siltstone/Carbonaceous Shale -45 245 200 ) .188 336 6.72
Carbonsceous shale 245 320 75| 054 057 1.93
Total hole 2| 149 .270 5.40




Stine Resources Lid
Management Discussion & Analysis — Page 17

Hele N* RC BMK 07-03 — declined 45°, azimuth 288", length 450 feet.

Siltstone, gray-tan, oxidized ] 35 351 11 197 3.95
Siltstone/Carbanaceous Shale 35 385 350, 262 468 9.36
Including Carb, Shale 53 295 240 | .288 518 10.29
Carbunactous Shale 385 450 651 1% 315 6.31
Total hale | i 450 | 238 ] 423 §.50
Hole N™ RC BMK 07-04 — declined 45°, azimuth N288°% length 400 feet.
Silstone, tan-gray, fine-grain, oxidized. 4] 135 1351 .045 080 1.61
Satqone/Shale, white-gran-biack, siicified, 135 355 2201 222 3% 1.91
Including Carb. shale 270 355 851 .269 497 9.5%
Shale, carbonaceous, pytitic, 355 400 45| .123 220 4.39
Total hole 400 | .151 269 5.39

Hole N* RC BMK 07-05 — declined 65°, azimuth N283", length 320 feet.

Silistone tan, oxidized t] 55 551 103 184 3.67

Silistone, tan-gray, oxidixed 55 225 170 | 243 435 8.6%
Including Silistone, finegrain 108 225 120 .262| 468 9.36
Carbonaceous shate 225 320 65 | .089 159 3.19
Total hole 320 ) .174 310 6.1%
Hole N* RC BMK 07-06 — declined 90°, azimuth N288°, length 623 feer.
 Sifistone/Sandstone, oxidized 0 195 195] a1 o013 La7
Carbonaceaus shale 195 465 Ml an 380 152
1ncluding 260 355 95| .239 A3 8.52
including 395 468 65 | 304 540 10.86
Carbonaceous shale 465 625 1601 063 119 2.24
‘Total hole 625§ .121 216 4.32

Hole N* RC BMK 07-07 — declined 90°, azimuth N288", length 645 feet.

Siltstone, yellow-gray, oxidized 9 145 145 ] .030 053 1.06
Siltstone/Carbonaceous Shale 145 380 2351 214 382 7.63
Including 240 280 40! .25 A47 8.95
Including 325 380 55| .265% A74 9.48
Carbonaceous shale 380 645 265 | .028 050 1.01
| Totat hole gas| 96| .17z 143
 Hole N* RC BMK 07-08 — declined 45°, azimuth N288%, length 400 feet,
Sihstone, fine-grain, oxidized 0 1o 1101 072 129 2.58
Siltstone/Carbongceous shale 110 365 255 | 263 A70 9.39
Including, silstone 125 175 50| .320 572 11.44
Ipctuding, carh, shale 245 55 110 | .283 505 10.14
 Carbonaceous shale 365 400 3i5; .081 .145 2.90

Total hole | 400 :I95] 348 | 6.95
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Hole N* RC BMK 07-09 — declined 45", azimuth N288°, lengih 480 feet.

Siltstone, med, grain, oxidized 1] 1560 160 083 149 2.98
Silstone/Carbonateous shale 160 330 170 | 437 A37 8.74

Including 205 330 95| 455 455 9.09
Carbonacgous Shale 330 480 150 | .055 099 1.98
Total hole 480 ] 132 235 4.71

Hole N* RC BMK 07-19 — declined 45°, azimuth K288°, lenpth 300 feer.

Siltstone, tan oxidized O 100 190 | .094 .168 3.35
Silstone/Carbonaceous shale - 100 300 200 | 318 567 1134

Including . 00 295 95| .362 647 12,93
Total hole 295 Aog 300 | 243 434 8.68

Hole N* RC BMK 07-11 ~ declined 65°, azimuth N288°, lengih 480 feet

Siltstone, 120, oxidized 1] 130 £30| 0431 0077 1.54
Siltstone/Carb. shale 130 345 215 266 475 2.51
Including | 170 240 70| .358 639 12.77

| Carbonaceous shale 345 480 135 .149 .265 5.31
Total Hole 480 | 173 308 6.17

Hale N* RC BMK 07-12 - declined 45°, azimuth N288", length 300 feet.

Siltstone, ten, oxidized 0 5 3] .12% .230 4.61

Siltstone, t2n, fine grain, oxidized 5 210 205! 2071 370 7.40
Including 70 100 30| .291 519 10.37
Including 175 210 135 | 258 A02 3.05

Carbonageous shale : 210 300 90 ) .034] .06t 122

Tatal hole 300 028 .050 1.00
4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the subsequent period the Company contracted Edward Ullmer, P. Geo, to produce an
updated geological technical report based on the report presented to Stina by JA Mine in
2005, and updated in 2006. The report will include exploration developments since that time,
as well as updated recommendations. The report will also include a resource estimate on a
sub-section of Northern Section “A” which extends 700 fect long by 100 feet wide, directly
north of BMK DDH — 2005, and with 100 foot interval RC drilling. The Company contracted
Maptek Co. of Lakewood, CO to conduct the resource estimate.

The updated geological technical report is expected in January 2008, at which time the
company will also issue a news release.

The Company regretfully announces that engineer John James of JA Mine Co. passed away
in August of 2007. John had significant impact in the development of the Bisoni McKay
property and will be dearly missed. Geologist Ed Ulimer, who worked under John James,
including on the Bisoni McKay property tn 2006, has replaced kim as the company
“qualified person” and has assumed the role as geological consultant at this time,
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The Company is currently arranging further financing for completion of Phase II on the
Bisani McKay property, as well as for working capital.

As of the date of this report, no other thied party agreemenis have been entered into by the Company,

5. OTHER
Controls over disclosure and financial reporting

Under multi-lateral instrument 52109 management is now required to certify that they have caused
the company to design suitable controls over extemal disclosure &nd financial reporting. Management”
must also wndertake reviews of the effectiveness of such controls and discuss areas of significant
weakness and the associated risks as well as their plans to address them,

The company has oot had sufficient financial resources 10 maintain dedicated internal financial
reporting and qualified professional accounting personnel. Accordingly, financial reporting contrals
and internal transaction controls are designed and provided primarily by management with limited .,
involvement from external consultants and professionals. This spproach has been determined by
management to be the most cost effective to date. However, controls may not be as smong as other
entities with access ta greater resources,

Management and the sudit committee have idemtified artas that need to be improved as the company
expands its scope of operations and sirives 1o mest curreat market and cegulatory expectations
relating 10 the effectiveness of controls.
Identified arcas of control weaknesses to be addressed include; "‘
: Payment authorization and signing autherities
Timely boakkeeping and account classifications and reconciliations
Supplementing ongoing expertise in GAAP and disclosure requirements
Segregation of duties
Management override of controls
Govemance processes and clarification of duties.

When contro] weaknesses are identified thete is increased risk of release of inappropriate
disclosures. There is also increased risk of misstatement in financial repening through errors,
omissions or fraudulent activity that could occur and go undetected. Management and the
directors of the company have started addressing the need for increased control measures.
Included in these steps were the following:

1. Regular periodic review of all cash transactions by an audit committee director with
management, with required wrnitten approval,

2. Required written approval for non-routine large transactions by an audit committee
director.

3. Engagement of an independent third party accountant to review interim guarterly
statements with Company management, check for bookkeeping and classification
errors, and proper disclosure.

The Company intends 1o direct additional resources to improving the identified deficiencies
and overall control environment and governance processes within the company,
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In respect of the audit committee meeting on March 1, 2007 during which the year-end financial
swnmary was reviewed with the company auditors, management discussed with the directars of the
company the need for increased contrel measures within the company, The Company initiated
addressing these issues during the year and discussed possible solutions with its auditars,
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